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Bernie M. Adams

c/o Capitol Savings & Loan
Capitol Avenue & Louisiana
Little Rock, AR 72201

Leon Adams
2519 Ringo Street
Little Rock, AR 72206

Sally Ann Adams

c/o Pulaski Federal Savings
and Loan Association

Third and Spring

Little Rock, AR 72201

Arch Street Church of Christ
P. 0. Box 3012
Little Rock, AR 72206

Dr. Thelma S. Anderson
1301 Broadway
Little Rock, AR 72202

Location of Property

1605 Broadway, Little Rock
ok of Lot 2, all Lot 3y

623 and 623% West 14, N 47 ft.
of N % of 3 & West 47 f£t. of
Iots 1 & 2 - Block 213.

1419 Gaines Street
Block 213, Tot 3.

1409 Gaines Street
Block 213, N 13% ft. of 4 &
sk of 3.

1516 Spring
N % of 8 and 8 12% ft. of 9
Block 201.

609 West 15th Street
Block 214, N5 Lot 11 and All
of Lot 12.

1305 Broadway
Block 199, et 2

Block 199, Lot 1.
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32, J. M. Cones 1501 Broadway
312 Louisiana Street Block 201, West 100 ft. of Iot 1.

Little Rock, AR 72201

1505 Broadway
Block 201, Iot. 2,

33. A. R. Connerly 1323 Broadway
1322 Broadway ] Block 199, Lot 6.
Little Rock, AR 72202

34. Georgie L. Cook 1605 Arch Street
2101 Beechwood Block 205, S. 40 ft. of N. 108
Little Rock, AR 72207 ft. and E. 42 ft. of iSkrof Tot 2

and the North 4 ft. of Lot 3

3b. R. H. Cornellson, Jr. 1422 Arch Street
504 West "F" Block 7 and South 5 ft. of Lot 8.
North Little Rock, AR

36. James L. Couch 1410 & 1422 Arch Street
1410 & 1412 Arch Street Block 213, N % of Lot 9 & S 44 ft.
Little Rock, AR 72202 of Lot 10.

IF. Ernest D. Crummett, Jr. 1318 Center Street
c/o Charles Fendley Co. Block 194, Iot 8.

2614 Pike Avenue
North Little Rock, AR 72114

38. Lynn A. Davis 510 West 17th Street
c/o Capitol Savings & Loan East 80 ft. of 5% of Lot 5 &
Capitol Avenue & Louisiana East 80 ft. of Lot 6.
Little Rock, AR 72201 Block 205
39 Albert Nelson DeMers 1708 Arch Street
2619 West 14th Street Block 216, Lot 1l.

Little Rock, AR 72202

40- Thomas T. Dickinson 515 West 15th Street
515 West 15th Street Block 206, E 78 ft. of Lot 1,

Little Rock, AR 72202 2830
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96.

97.

98.

100.

104.

102.

103.

104.

W. C. McMinn Co.

904 West Second Street
Little Rock, AR 72201

Carl H. Miller, Jr.
P. Q. Box 1411
TIdittle Rock, AR 72203

Elizabeth Mitchell Home

1723 Broadway
Little Rock, AR 72206

H. Clay Moore

c/o Capitol Savings & Loan
Capitol Ave. & Louisiana
Little Rock, AR 772201

Mount Vernon Baptist Church
1621 Gaines Street
Little Rock, AR 72206

Murphy 0Oil Company
Murphy Building
El Dorado, AR 71730

James M. Pickard
806 West Second
Little Rock, AR 72201

Mr. & Mrs. Joseph Narisi
First National Mortgage

Capitol & Broadway Sts.
ILittle Rock, AR 72201

Joseph Nemec, III
c/o Pulaski Federal Savings & Loan
Third & Spring-Little Rock 72201

Michael O. Morrow
1614 Arch Street

Little Rock, AR 72206

Location of Property

1l6th & Broadway, NW Corner
Block 206, Lot 7 & S % of Iot 8.

1401 Broadway
Bhock 200, ‘Lot 1 & Ni3b it of

ot 2.
1400 Spring, Block 200

N& of Lot 11 & all Lot 12,

Block 202, S 40 ft. of Lot 4,

All Lots 5 & 6.
Block 203, All Lots 7, 8 & 9.

1501 Spring

Block 192, Iot 1 & Nu 6fdot 2,
1521 Spring

8k of Lot 5 & all Lot 6.

1621 Gaines Street

Block 215, Letsil, 2,3, 4755

& W 140 ft. of ILot 6, W 50 Et,

of ' N% of Tet 11 & W HOEES oF Lot 12.

1624 Broadway
Block 205, Lots 7, 8 & 9.

403 West 13th Street
Block 199, E 70 ft. of Lets 11
& 12.

310 West 14th Street
Block 194, W50 Fti of Lot 7.

1709 South Arch Street
Block 204, Lot 3 & N 22% of
Lot 4.

1614 Arch Street
Block 215, Lot 9
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1le.

R. W. Rightsell
500 Brookside Drive
Little Rock, AR 72205

1623 Gaines, Block 215
B 10 Tt o ShotNeET

117. Otho Ring Block 213,;/'N45 ft. of Lot 8
6900 Baseline Rd. and S% of Lot 9.
Little Rock, AR 72209
lk@. Charles R. Ross 1309 Arch Street
1309 Arch Street Block 208, 'Tot 3.
Little Rock, AR 72202
119. John H. Rule, Jr. 1416 Center Street
2122 Scott Street Block 193, Nk of Lot 8 and
Little Rock, AR 72206 all Lot 9
1412 Center Street
Block 193, 843 f£t. of Lot 103
120. Joyce W. Rule 1424 Center Street
2122 Scott Street Block 193, E100: £t. of Lot 7
Little Rock, AR 72206 & E100 ft. of sk of Lot 8.
115 (8 Marjorie B. Schultz w88 ft. of Lot 3 & all Lots
320 West 18th Street 4, 58 6.
Little Rock, AR 72206
122 M. D. Springfield 315 West 13th Street
c/o 315 West 13th Street Block 194, Iots 1 & 2.
Little Rock, AR 72202
123. Wayman D. Stewart, Sr. Corner l1l4th and Gaines
620 West 14th Street Block 212, W 100 ft. of Lots
Little Rock, AR 72202 5 &6
124. Mrs, “Bill B. Taylor 1300 Broadway
1300 Broadway Block 208, NLO' f£t. of Lot 11
Little Rock, AR 72202 and all Lot 12.
174510 Charles M. Taylor- 511 West 16th Street

808 Pyramid Building
Little Rock, AR 72201

Block 205, W 50 ft. of Lots
11 & 12.and "Bloek 2075 Lot 8.






























Form No. 10-300a
(Rev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR Ty TR |
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE |
siceiven. DEE 12 1977

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES

INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM  loameewwenso  oio | (7

CONTINUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER 7 PAGE 5

15. 1700 Spring Street - constructed 1907; Colonial Revival; two-and-one-
half-story brick.

16. 1400 Broadway - constructed c. 1890; Victorian/Shingle Style; two-and-
one-half-story frame.

17. 1623 Broadway - constructed c. 1890; Victorian; one-and-one-half story.

18. 1701 Broadway - constructed c. 1915; late Craftsman Style; two-and-one-
half-story brick.

19. 1722 Broadway - incompatible intrusion; one-story concrete.

20. 1701 Arch Street - Entered on National Register 9-5-75; constructed c. 1888;
Victorian cottage, one-and-one-half-story frame.

21. 1720 Arch Street; constructed c. 1890; Victorian/Shingle Style; one-and-
one-half story frame covered with asbestos siding.

22. 1614 Arch Street - constructed c..1880; Victorian; two-and-one-half-story
frame.

23. 1517-23 Gaines - constructed c. 1894; brick commercial structures; one-
story brick.

24. 1709 Gaines - constructed c. 1890; Shingle Style; two-and-one-half-story
frame.

25. 1721 Gaines - constructed c. 1898; Stick Style; two-and-one-half-story
frame.

26. 310 West 17th - entered on the National Register 5-13-76; constructed
1889; "Band-Saw Gothic"; two-story brick.

27. 400 West 18th - constructed 1915-16; Colonial Revival; two-story brick.
























NATIONAL REGISTER NOMINATION
GOVERNOR'S MANSION HISTORIC DISTRICT, AREA 1

10 GEOGRAPHIC DATA
Verbal Boundary Description Continued

The boundary turns north on Center Street and runs north/south on the west
side of the street five blocks to 13th Street.




BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION OF THE GOVERNOR'S MANSION HISTORIC DISTRICT, AREA ONE

This district runs east/west on the south side of 13th Street from Center
four blocks to Gaines, where it turns south on Gaines running north/south
on the east side of Gaines for five blocks to 18th Street. At 18th Street
the distric¢t turns east and runs for three blccks on"the north side of

18th Street to Spring Street. At this point the boundary of the district
turns south along the edge of the Governor's Mansion grounds and runs so as
to encompass the entire grounds of the Governor's Mansion. The boundary
north on Center Street and runs north/south on the west side of the street
five blocks to 13th St.
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Amendment to the Governor’s Mansion Historic District

This nomination seeks to change the status of the actual Governor’s Mansion,(PU 1162) from
noncontributing to contributing to the National Register historic district which bears its name.
The resulting resource count is thereby changed from 508 contributing and 178 noncontributing
properties to 509 contributing and 177 noncontributing properties.

Summary

Constructed from 1948-1950, the Governor’s Mansion is a two-story brick masonry structure
with a two-story central portico and flanking dependencies. The building is virtually unaltered
since construction.

Elaboration

Located at 1800 Center Street on six-and-a-half acres, the Governor’s Mansion is a two-story
brick masonry structure constructed from 1948-1950 to serve as Arkansas’s first official
governor’s residence. Charged with designing a "Southern Colonial"-style structure by the
mansion commission, the firm of Ginocchio & Cromwell turned to the Early Classical Revival,
or Jeffersonian, style for inspiration. As was common with the original style, the Governor’s
Mansion presents the appearance of a Georgian or Adamesque-style house with a colonnaded,
Classical portico grafted onto the front facade. The brick foundation consists of 20" thick
basement walls, which support 16" thick exterior brick walls. Both are of cavity wall
construction with a running bond. Over 300,000 bricks were used in the construction and almost
all were taken from the old Blind School that had previously stood on this site (a few bricks used
for the interior wall were taken from an extant wall of a former prison building on Roosevelt
Road). Steel joists and concrete slabs were utilized for the first, second, and, interestingly, the
attic floors. The composition-shingled gable roof has a 6/12 pitch (6" drop for each foot in
length) and is anchored on each end by an exterior brick chimney. Underneath the closed eave
of the roof, the narrow cornice is adorned with a dentil course. The apparent lack of a frieze
(or a deeper cornice) is due to the original intent to paint the brick white, and not from a design
flaw or an attempt to save money.

The front, or northern, elevation is dominated by the central portico which is supported by four
evenly spaced Roman Tuscan columns with two square pilasters. The gable roof projects from
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below the ridge of the main gable roof and forms a pediment that rests upon an entablature of
appropriate proportions. Outlined by a raking cornice, the interior of the pediment is covered
with stucco and features a relief of the state seal in the center.

Underneath the portico, the front entrance is composed of a wide (4”), eight-panelled wood door
that is surrounded by three-pane sidelights and an elliptical fanlight. Above, a small balcony
with a simple wrought-iron balustrade is accessed by narrow double-leaf doors with eight-pane
glazing. Four-pane sidelights assist with the interior lighting of the room on this floor.

On either side of the portico, the facade is fenestrated by two bays of multiple-pane wood-frame
windows. The four first-story windows are triple hung with each individual sash containing
eight panes. The upper-story windows are a more common eight-over-eight double-hung type.

A hipped-roof, single-story wing is attached to each end elevation. The brick cornice detail is
copied from the Noland House at the Arkansas Territorial Restoration. Fenestration on the front
elevation of each wing is accomplished by two twelve-over-twelve double-hung windows. The
east wing was originally meant to have been a screened porch; however, during construction it
was decided to enclose it for use as a living room. The wings are not identically constructed;
the west wing has an inset wrap around porch supported by elaborate wrought-iron columns at
the rear elevation.

In 1949, the state legislature approved two additional appropriations to include the two curved
hyphens and dependencies and the interior furnishings. These hyphens are curved so that the
single-story dependencies present a front gabled appearance. Both hyphens are open walkways
that are covered by a shallow-pitched gable roof with a front brick wall that has a semi-circular
arched brick doorway in the center that is flanked on each side by three oculus openings. The
roof is supported at the rear by seven Tuscan columns. The western hyphen is distinguished by
having an additional hipped-roof covered walkway supported by ten Tuscan columns that is
perpendicular to the hyphen and leads to the arched entrance. Both dependencies feature interior
brick chimneys and are largely fenestrated by six-over-six double-hung windows.

The rear, or southern, elevation of the house is more complex than the front elevation but still
retains a semblance of symmetry. A brick terrace encircled by wrought-iron railing stretches
across the entire ground floor and provides the roof for the exposed basement on this elevation.
The exposed wall projects from the center of the terrace and is flanked on each side by a brick
staircase. Entry into the basement is gained through a central arched opening that leads to a pair
of French doors. Two identical arches are placed to either side but contain two-pane windows.
Interestingly, simple ten-pane double-leaf doors are used for the central first-floor entrance,
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while the second story is adorned by a massive Palladian entrance with the sidelights and double-
leaf doors of uniform size and glazing (each has four large panes). Again, a small balcony with
a wrought-iron balustrade is employed.

To the east of center, there is a first-story porch with a shallow flat roof supported by two
wrought-iron columns. Originally this roof protected three adjacent eight-over-eight-over-eight
triple-hung windows; however, the center window was later replaced by the current twelve-pane
double-leaf doors. The upper story is fenestrated by two symmetrical eight-over-eight double-
hung windows. The facade west of center is dominated by the two-story bay window that is
fenestrated on the first story by a tall, 36-pane stationary window in the center flanked by two
eight-over-eight triple-hung windows. The second story contains a shorter 30-pane stationary
window in the center with two eight-over-twelve double-hung windows. This bay was designed
to provide a little more interior room and also to balance the facade since the placement of the
adjacent elevator shaft (the elevator was never installed) precluded the proper symmetrical
placement of the windows. A small, multiple-pane oculus window adorns the stair landing
between the bay windows and the center entrances at the junction of the two stories. Also of
note on the rear elevation is the large eighteen-over-eighteen window on the east wing.

The interior of the house features a central staircase that spirals upward from the basement. At
the time of construction, a carpenter skilled in wooden staircase construction could not be
secured, and a simple concrete staircase with a wrought-iron railing was installed. In the late
1980’s during the Bill Clinton governorship, a wood staircase with a delicate turned spindle
balustrade was installed. Hanging in the staircase well at the first-story level is a chandelier that
originally hung in the dining room. It was moved to its current location because it was deemed
too overpowering in conjunction with the 9 1/2 ’ ceiling (the second-story ceilings are one-half
foot shorter). The door, window, and cornice moldings are of appropriate Classical designs,
and the cornices are unusual in that they are executed in plaster. Also molded from plaster is
the large, ornate circular relief on the ceiling of the first-story hall.

The Governor’s Mansion Commission selected Bill Heerwagen to decorate the interior of the
new mansion. A fitting choice, for Bill’s grandfather, Paul, had been the interior decorator of
the new state capitol building. Heerwagen decorated the two downstairs "public rooms" with
seafoam green paint, carpet, wallcoverings, and nylon damask draperies.

Although the house was not initially constructed with air conditioning, provisions were made to
house the chiller and cooling tower (only commercial units were available at the time). During
the Orval Faubus administration, a gas air conditioning system was installed, but this system was
upgraded by a more modern and conventional unit during Winthrop Rockefeller’s tenure in the
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mansion.

The Governor’s Mansion is still used for its original purpose and is virtually unaltered since
construction.
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Summary

Pursuant to National Register Bulletin 22 (Criteria Consideration G), this nomination seeks to
change the status of the Governor’s Mansion from noncontributing to contributing to the National
Register historic district which bears its name.

Elaboration

The Governor’s Mansion is the first official residence constructed for the governor of the state
of Arkansas. Constructed from 1948 to 1950, the Governor’s Mansion occupies the original site
of Rosewood, the home of the last Territorial governor, William Savin Fulton. Fulton came to
Arkansas from Maryland in 1829 when he was appointed secretary of the territory by President
Andrew Jackson. He became governor in 1835 and then served as a U.S. Senator until his death
in 1844. Rosewood, a one-and-a-half story vernacular Greek Revival house, was constructed
c. 1840 and was then considered in the country about a mile south of Little Rock. In 1869,
Fulton’s widow sold the house and eight acres to the State of Arkansas for the use of the
Arkansas Blind Institute, which was founded in 1859 in Arkadelphia.

The Blind Institute immediately constructed a new two-story brick building with a mansard roof
at what is now the southeast corner of Eighteenth and Spring Streets. An 1870 description of
the site noted the land:

. . . [is] situated on and composes an elevation at the head of Center Street, with
the Capitol Building (Old State House) in full view at the other end, connected
and approached by a beautiful avenue one mile in length. The surface of the land
is so cut and laid as to present a flat of great beauty and utility; enclosed with a
stout, durable fence, and admirably laid off in walks and carriage roads, in the
order of landscape gardening . .

By 1885, additional facilities were needed, and the state allocated $20,000 for the construction
of a new School for the Blind building about where the Governor’s Mansion now stands (the
existing building continued to be used). Designed by Benjamin J. Bartlett, the impressive new
structure had a three-story main office and classroom building with a tall, central tower and
flanking two-and-a-half story dormitory buildings connected by hyphens.

The Institute for the Blind moved to another location in 1939, and the Division of Vocational
Education was established in the building. In late 1947, a Governor’s Mansion building
commission was appointed and was composed of Clyde E. Lowry of Little Rock, Jack Carnes
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of Camden, L. L. Baxter of Fayetteville, Ralph McDonald of Newport, Rufus Branch of Joiner,
and Mrs. Earl Rhodes of Walnut Ridge. Governor Ben Laney and the 1948 state legislature
appropriated $100,000 to secure a site and construct Arkansas’s first official governor’s
mansion. The commission selected the historic site at 1800 Center Street and decided on a
"Southern Colonial style" residence. The architectural firm of Cromwell and Ginocchio was
awarded the contract to design such a structure.

Edwin Cromwell, partner in charge, and John Truemper, project designer, designed the new
mansion in a style faithful to the tenants of Thomas Jefferson’s Roman Revival or Early
Classical Revival style. Like the original style, the main body of the house is basically
Adamesque, or Federal, in massing and detail, and the front facade is balanced symmetrically
with only the larger first-story windows to indicate that it is not an original example. Inspired
by the fenestration of Jefferson’s Monticello, Truemper specified the distinctive triple-hung sash
for these first-story windows (a feature that is also found ocasionally in original Greek Revival-
style houses in Arkansas). The central portico is also appropriate to the original concept with
evenly spaced Tuscan columns and proper massing. In 1949 while under construction, two
additional appropriations were made to add the flanking dependencies and interior furnishings.
The dependencies were added to provide additional room, approximately 1,200 square feet to
the original plan’s 10,000 square feet. When completed, the Governor’s Mansion was still
relatively small compared to neighboring state’s governor’s mansions such as Louisiana (25,000
sq. ft.), Tennessee (15,000 sq. ft.), and Oklahoma (13,500 sq. ft.). The total cost of the
construction including demolition of the Blind School, furnishings, and site improvements was
$197,000.

Although Governor Laney initiated the construction of the Governor’s Mansion, his term ended
before completion, and Sid McMath was the first governor to reside in the new mansion. His
wife, Anne, influenced the final design of the house by requesting that the east wing, originally
designed to be a screened porch, enclosed as a living room. The Governor’s Mansion was only
occasionally used for public functions during the tenures of McMath, Francis Cherry, and Orval
Faubus. During Winthrop Rockefeller’s two terms as governor, however, the mansion became
more accessible to the public and was utilized more often for public functions. To accommodate
this increased usage, the air conditioning system was reworked, the basement was finished, and
additional, bigger restrooms were installed.

This nomination seeks to change the status of the Governor’s Mansion from noncontributing to
contributing to the National Register District which bears its name. According to National
Register Bulletin 22, a property less than fifty years of age can contribute to a historic district
if it is considered an "integral part" of the district. The Governor’s Mansion Historic District
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is a predominantly residential area that encompasses the south-central portion of the Original
City of Little Rock and parts of three additions that were platted a few years after the Civil War.
The district is characterized by a typical 19th century grid pattern of development imposed on
generally flat terrain. Throughout the district, broad tree-lined streets are bordered by curbs and
sidewalks that date primarily from the early 20th century. The architectural character of the
district is predominantly from the early 20th century; however, a sizable minority of the
district’s buildings were constructed in the late 19th century.

The district contains a number of Colonial Revival/Classical Revival-style residences that range
from the late 19th century one-story transitional cottages to the large Classical Revival mansions
such as the imposing Hotze House (NR 8/11/75) to the more correct "Georgian Revival" period
houses of the 1930’s. The architectural style of the Governor’s Mansion fits nicely into this
spectrum and is, in fact, the perfect anchor for the last phase of the Colonial Revival/Classical
Revival style in Little Rock. Constructed from 1948 to 1950, the Governor’s Mansion is the
last example of its style to be constructed in the district, and though less than fifty years of age,
its appearance is clearly the result of the conservative, pre-World War II mindset of the
Governor’s Mansion Commission.

Not only is the Governor’s Mansion architecturally compatible with the historic architecture of
the district, but it is the acknowledged focal point of the district. Just as the School for the
Blind influenced the development of the surrounding residential neighborhood, the Governor’s
Mansion has influenced the more recent restoration efforts of the surrounding district by adding
prestige and stability to the area. Because neighborhood residents used the Governor’s Mansion
as a landmark for identifying where they lived, the name "Governor’s Mansion" was applied to
both the original and amended district nominations.

As it is clear that the Governor’s Mansion is indeed an integral part of the district which bears
its name, it is being nominated under the guidelines set forth in National Register Bulletin 22
as a contributing resource to the district.































































NPS Form 10-000-a OMB Approval No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number Page

Governor's Mansion Historic District Pulaski County, ARKANSAS
780006206

ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION ACCEPTED _%%MM ///?% 73




UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
EVALUATION/RETURN SHEET

REQUESTED ACTION: ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION

PROPERTY Governor’s Mansion Historic District

NAME:

MULTIPLE
NAME:

STATE & COUNTY: ARKANSAS, Pulaski

DATE RECEIVED: 10/22/93

DATE OF 16TH DAY:
DATE OF WEEKLY LIST:

REFERENCE NUMBER: 78000620

NOMINATOR: STATE

REASONS FOR REVIEW:

DATE
DATE

APPEAL: N DATA PROBLEM: N LANDSCAPE:
OTHER: Ne 2 PDTT;: N PERIOD:
REQUEST: N SAMPLE: N SLR DRAFT:

COMMENT WAIVER: N
-/ ACCEPT RETURN

ABSTRACT/SUMMARY COMMENTS:

REJECT

OF PENDING LIST:

OF 45TH DAY: 12 /06/93

N LESS THAN 50 YEARS: N

N PROGRAM UNAPPROVED: N

N NATIONAL: N
DATE

At hin1aP dbcrrrerdahinn i add /s Guremors
MNuwrien ”, «>2 2 WW?’/WW iz

s

Warer10t1 Y
o MWM’“ %

o W1

Mnm N et 27t Lprr)—

WWWW7 41

DOCUMENTATION see attached comments Y/N see attached SLR Y/N



CLASSIFICATION

count —__resource type

-—

STATE/FEDERAL AGENCY CERTIFICATION =

FUNCTION

. historic ___current

DESCRIPTION

___architectural classification
materials
___descriptive text

SIGNIFICANCE
Period Areas of Significance--Check and justify below
Specific dates Builder/Architect

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

—_summary paragraph
—__completeness

. clarity

—_applicable criteria

—Justification of areas checked
_—_relating significance to the resource
—scontext
__relationship of integrity to significance
— Jjustification of exception
___other

BIBLIOGRAPHY

GEOGRAPHICAL DATA

—__acreage —verbal boundary description
— UTMs —boundary justification

ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTATION/PRESENTATION

—sketch maps ___USGS maps —_photographs ____presentation

OTHER COMMENTS
Questions concerning this nomination may be directed to

Phone

Signed Date




National Register of Historic Places

Note to the record

Additional Documentation: 1996












UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
EVALUATION/RETURN SHEET

REQUESTED ACTION: ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION

PROPERTY Governor's Mansion Historic District
NAME :

MULTIPLE
NAME :

STATE & COUNTY: ARKANSAS, Pulaski

DATE RECEIVED: 11/05/96 DATE OF PENDING LIST:

DATE OF 16TH DAY: DATE OF 45TH DAY: 12/20/96
DATE OF WEEKLY LIST:

REFERENCE NUMBER: 78000620

NOMINATOR: STATE

REASONS FOR REVIEW:

APPEAL: N DATA PROBLEM: N LANDSCAPE: N LESS THAN 50 YEARS: N
OTHER : NS LT e N PERIOD: N PROGRAM UNAPPROVED: N
REQUEST: N SAMPLE: N SLR DRAFT: N NATIONAL: N

COMMENT WAIVER: N

"
ACCEPT ___RETURN ____REJECT [2 4 L((& DATE

ABSTRACT/SUMMARY COMMENTS:

Additional Docur,

e M m%i 5 {,
/ s

REVIEWER DISCIPLINE /7 2 g
A | N Ll T

TELEPHONE DATE

DOCUMENTATION see attached comments Y/N see attached SLR Y/N



























National Register of Historic Places

Note to the record

Additional Documentation: 1999



NPS Form 10-900-a OMB Approval No. 1024-0018
(8-86)

United States Department of the Interior G 1 5

National Park Service
% " . " OCT 71999
National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet i RNEAGIZS()T#EEL%FAgf\’gggg’\fcr&“(:ﬁs
3 1 /fj ’, / %)
Sectionnumber —___ Page — 75008620 /3600062 (6]

As the designated authority wunder the National Historic
Preservation Act, as amended, I hereby certify that this X

nomination _ request for determination of eligibility meets the
documentation standards for registering properties in the National
Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and
professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my
opinion, the property X meets does not meet the National
Register criteria. I recommend that this property be considered
significant nationally statewide X locally. (____ See

uation sheet for additional comments.)

7-23.59

certifying official/Title Date

Signature

Arkansas Historic Preservation Program
State or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property meets does not meet the
National Register criteria. ( See continuation sheet for
additional comments.)

Signature of certifying official/Title Date

State or Federal agency and bureau




SECTION 7, FLETCHER-HEISKELL HOUSE
(Amendment to the Governor’s Mansion Historic District)
Little Rock, Pulaski County
1910

Summary

Located in the Governor’s Mansion Historic District, the 1910 Fletcher-Heiskell House is
a two-story weatherboard Dutch Colonial Revival structure on a continuous brick
foundation. The home was originally constructed on Louisiana Street by the Fletchers in
1892 in the Queen Anne style, but was updated by the Heiskell family in 1910. The
gambrel roof of this large home is abutted perpendicularly by a gable roof topped by a
small cupola. A full brick porch supported by five massive Doric columns dominates the
main elevation. The interior retains such original features as oak and heartpine flooring,
an oak staircase, circa 1910 lighting and plumbing fixtures, decorative wood molding and
French and paneled doors. The Fletcher-Heiskell House is being nominated to the
National Register of Historic Places as an amendment to the Governor’s Mansion
Historic District. With the addition of the home to the district the contributing building
count will stand at 525 and the non-contributing will be 161. When the original survey of
the area was completed the house was sheathed in asphalt roll siding and the front porch
was enclosed. Due to the removal of these nonhistoric features the house has become
eligible for inclusion in the district as a contributing building.

Elaboration

Located in the Governor’s Mansion Historic District, the 1910 Fletcher-Heiskell House is
a two-story weatherboard Dutch Colonial Revival structure on a continuous brick
foundation. The home was originally constructed in 1892 in the Queen Anne style, but
was updated by the Heiskell family in 1910. The gambrel roof of this large home is
abutted perpendicularly by a gable roof topped by a small cupola. A full porch supported
by five massive Doric columns dominates the front, or eastern, elevation. Seven brick
steps at the northeast corner access the red brick porch floor. Two sets of twenty-light
French doors with four-light transoms open to the porch from the parlor at the southeast
corner of the house. The entry, a twelve-light French door with four-light transom, is
flanked by two eight-beside-eight casement windows to the northeast. A large second
story shed dormer clad in wooden shakes is lit by four six-over-one double-hung
windows.

The northern elevation rises forty-five feet above its foundation, revealing immensity not
evident from the street level. Two nine-light casement windows open into the basement.
The first-story fenestration of the gambrel roofed section from left to right, consist of an
eight-beside-eight casement window and a pair of one-over-one windows. The gabled
section of the home which is stepped back slightly, is lit by a pair of windows adjacent to
a ribbon of four windows that proceed to the northwest corner of the house. The second-
story of the gambreled section above a wide band of molding is clad in shake shingles



and features two pairs of six-over-one windows on either side of a single window lighting
the staircase. The gabled portion contains two pairs of six-over-one windows.

The first-story of the rear, or western, fagade is fenestrated from the northwestern corner
with a pair of short one-over-one windows, a one-light paneled door with transom, a
second pair of short six-over-six windows abutting the door and a single full-size one-
over-one window at the southwestern corner. The second story from north to south
consists of a six-over-one window and four one-over-one windows.

The first-story gabled section of the southern elevation contains three one-over-one
double-hung windows. A small bay with two short one-over-one windows protrudes
from the gambreled section. Two eight-beside-eight casement windows flank a brick
exterior chimney with a stepped stack. A ribbon of six eight-over-eight windows lights a
second-story sleeping porch. On the gambreled portion, a short, one-over-one window
and a six-over-one window open to the west of the chimney while a pair of six-over-one
windows open to the east.

The interior of the house was altered through the years to provide space for nursery
school classes and lodging for the nuns who taught there in the 1950s through the 1970s.
Many original features have survived however, such as the original oak and heartpine
floors and an oak dogleg staircase with a turned spindle balustrade that is reached via an
arched opening in the foyer, lending drama to the entry space. Original tubs, sinks,
medicine cabinets and pendant and sconce light fixtures can also be found in the home.
The first floor has an open plan with French doors leading to the front parlor and dining
room from the foyer. The parlor contains a brick fireplace with a simple wooden mantel
flanked by bookshelves. Two more brick fireplaces are located on the first floor in the
maid’s quarters and the butler’s pantry. The second story contains several bedrooms and
two bathrooms arranged around a central hall.

A detached weatherboard garage is located to the rear of the house, but it is considered
noncontributing to this nomination as it appears to be of recent construction and has
suffered extensive deterioration due to a leaking roof.

The Fletcher-Heiskell House endured several years of deferred maintenance after the
1970s resulting in widespread decay. The current owners are completing restoration
work for installation of a bed and breakfast. The bulk of the exterior work will involve
replacement of rotted features while maintaining the historic appearance of the home. An
expanse of asphalt surrounding the home that was used as parking space will be removed
and replaced with landscaping. They will also sustain those interior features that remain
from the early years of the house.



SECTION 8, FLETCHER-HEISKELL HOUSE
(Amendment to the Governor’s Mansion Historic District)
Little Rock, Pulaski County
1910

Summary

The Fletcher-Heiskell House is being nominated to the National Register of Historic
Places with local significance under Criterion C as the single best example of the Dutch
Colonial Revival style in the Governor’s Mansion Historic District of Little Rock. Its
status is being changed from non-contributing to contributing due to the removal of non-
historic asphalt roll sheathing by the current owners.

Elaboration

In 1892 Frank M. Fletcher, a local merchant who was Secretary and Treasurer of Beal &
Fletcher Grocer Company, constructed the Fletcher-Heiskell House in the Queen Anne
style. In the late 1890s Mr. Fletcher became Treasurer, Manager and Vice President of
C.F. Penzil Grocer Company. In 1900 he became owner of Fletcher Coffee & Spice.
Ten years later Mr. Fletcher sold the house to J.N. Heiskell, owner of the Arkansas
Gazette.

J.N. Heiskell and his brother Frederick bought the Gazette in 1902 and J.N. became
editor and President of the Gazette Publishing Company. In 1910 Mr. Heiskell married
Wilhemina Mann, daughter of prominent local architect, George Mann. Oral tradition
states that in that year Mr. Mann designed the plans for renovation of the original Queen
Anne home constructed by Mr. Fletcher to the present Dutch Colonial Revival style. Mr.
Heiskell resided in the home until 1956 when he sold it to the Institute of Our Blessed
Virgin Mary. Our Lady’s Convent operated a nursery school in the home until 1970
when it was sold to Jessie E. O’Flarity and Mary Rogers. The Fletcher-Heiskell House
was operated as the Bailey Boarding House until 1994 when it passed to another set of
owners, Edna and David Bowen. In 1998 the current owners, David and Carla Bryant
purchased the house and began correcting the years of neglect.

The Fletcher-Heiskell House is being nominated to the National Register of Historic
Places as an amendment to the Governor’s Mansion Historic District under Criterion C
with local significance. The house is the single best example of a Dutch Colonial Revival
residence in the historic district as the majority of the homes within the boundaries are
constructed in the Queen Anne, Craftsman, Greek Revival and Italianate styles.
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Governor’s Mansion Historic District — Additional Documentation Pulaski County, Arkansas
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In the original nomination for the Governor’s Mansion Historic District, the Gress House (PU1360) at 1415
South Broadway was considered to be a non-contributing resource. At the time, the property had lost its
gingerbread ornament and the front porch had been replaced with an incompatible porch that had also been
enclosed at some point. In addition, non-original synthetic siding had been placed on the house. However,
the property should be considered a contributing resource. Since the time that the nomination was completed
and approved, the property has been restored. Among other things, the project restored the original wood
clapboard siding on the property and restored the front porch as well. As a result, the building is considered
to be a contributing resource in the Governor’s Mansion Historic District.
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In the original nomination for the Governor’s Mansion Historic District, the W. H. Vaughan Cottage
(PU1200) at 2210 South Center was considered to be a non-contributing resource. At the time that the
original survey was conducted in 1987, the house had had synthetic siding installed and the front porch’s
columns had been replaced with wrought-iron columns. Furthermore, by 1998, the front dormer had been
removed and the front facade had been covered with a fieldstone veneer. However, the property should be
considered a contributing resource. In the last year, new owners of the property have removed the siding and
stone veneer, and restored the front dormer and the front porch’s columns. As a result, the building is
considered to be a contributing resource in the Governor’s Mansion Historic District.



Governor’s Mansion Historic District — Additional Documentation Pulaski County, Arkansas

Name of Property County and State

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number Additional ~ Page 1
Documentation

Figure 1: W. H. Vaughan Cottage — 1987.
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Figure 2: W. H. Vaughan Cottage — 1998.
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Photo Log

Name of Property: Governor’s Mansion Historic District — W. H. Vaughan Cottage
City or Vicinity: Little Rock

County: Pulaski State: Arkansas

Photographer: Ralph S. Wilcox

Date Photographed: March 24, 2017

Description of Photograph(s) and number, include description of view indicating direction of camera:
1 of 5 . View of the west facade, looking east.

2 of 5 . View of the west and north fagades, looking southwest.

3of 5 . View of the west and north fagades, looking southeast.

4 of 5 . View of the west facade, looking east.

5of 5 . View of the south facade, looking northwest.





















National Register of Historic Places
Memo to File

Correspondence

The Correspondence consists of communications from (and possibly to) the nominating authority, notes
from the staff of the National Register of Historic Places, and/or other material the National Register of
Historic Places received associated with the property.

Correspondence may also include information from other sources, drafts of the nomination, letters of
support or objection, memorandums, and ephemera which document the efforts to recognize the
property.






/57] Cintr SZ. /4
BOUNDARY REVISION N

Property .7

Fsverman  fWenoin. 1/, D. INCREASE
: DECREASE,
State AR Working Number HOVE BZ 7700, 770 N
TECENICAL CONTROL
Photos o
Maps Al

e Z i RS - : HISTORIA
/%a e a7 A Vd’au:y o ALeIF0 ) Qo A AT T o % g //}7‘1)\;/’_

Tne ,{éw oloe, _mo? Reaer )Z{ 00(4al('f7 %é‘ 4/60‘7{/ch A %a A N T
ey fave Lion Cmvl‘r@M5/'6u5;7 4 A S b, K za?éﬁ/ Lo S A/—é

oo bl peh eyl sy pgimiat oo e Lty £ pinal __Gatroen ofh
nemimation. Wkico e A e Moo Acatdi o~ ARCHITRCTURAL HISTORIAN

A okl L h G mi? ‘clnAfret, 6.7 o R W heses & /.>::~2)~

ARCBREOLGG.ST

OTHER

REVIEW UKNIT CHIEF

BRANCH CHIEF

A Sty ABOVE THS Y K27 4 frllOACT LEUSOn. T Reeors KEEPER
SHOLD SipsRy SHond T T4 Conl mIATION SHEET WS acc €272 - e o6 r—
¢/y6
7
(]
I HEREBY CERTIFY TIAT THIS BOUNDARY REVISION IS ACCEPTED
DATE
KEEPER OF THE NATIONAL REGISTER
ATTEST: DATE

CHIEF, BRANCH OF REGISTRATION

INT: 580-78

THIS FORM IS TO BE FILED WITH THE NATTONAL RECISTER NOMINATION.
State notified Federal Register____ Control Cards . ADP




ARKANSAS HISTORIC
PRESERVATION PROGRAM

Suite 500, Continental Building, Main and Markham
Little RockArkansas 72201 ~Telephone: (501) 371-2763, '
February 3, 1977 & I N ; .

), 0

The Honorable Don Mehlbilyger .R[tr
Mayor of the City of tle 'Rock IVED

City Hall EC 12 7977

Main and Markham
201 Ngr,

Little Rock, Arkansas )
(0) > . A . 2
ETEHS;M4L Re ;A @overnor's Mansion Historic District,
kR ' ea One - Little Rock, Pulaski County

»

Dear Mayor Mehlburger:

The staff of the Arkansas Historic Preservation Program is preparing a National

Register nomination for the Governor's Mansion Historic District, Area One which
will be presented to the Arkansas State Review Committee at their March meeting.
If approved, the nomination will be submitted to the National Register office

in Washington for final consideration.

The National Register of Historic Places is a listing of historic sites, buildings,
objects and districts from all across the country that are worthy of preservation.

Entry in the National Register is an honor which places no obligation on a private
owner. It does, however, provide protection through comment by the Advisory
Council on Historic Preservation from federally financed, assisted or licensed
projects that might affect a National Register property.

On October 4, 1976, the President signed a Tax Reform Act of which Section 2124
refers to tax incentives for historic properties. Enclosed you will find an
information sheet on that tax act.

If you have any questions concerning the program or this district's nomination,
please contact Sandra Taylor or Mike Shinn of our staff.

Enclosed are two copies of this letter. Please complete the form below, sign
and return the original to our office. The copy is for your files. We would
appreciate receiving any comments you might have concerning the nomination of
this district. If we do not hear from you within 30 days, your approval will
be assumed.

Sincerely,

;Z?n 2o ra [< ,/OC)(“/O +L_

Barbara Woodard, Deputy Director
Arkansas Historic Preservation Program

I approve aof 'the nomination of the above

property to the National Register of Historic Places. Yes No
Comments:
N 1 N
! } g?!l 4
}Z(OZ‘,’[ g

Date Signature

A DIVISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF ARKANSAS NATURAL & CULTURAL HERITAGE
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DAVIDSON, PLASTIRAS, HORNE, HOLLINGSWORTH & ARNOLD, LTD.
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
NATIONAL INVESTORS LIFE BUILDING
SECOND AT BROADWAY
PosT OFFICE Box 3363
LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72203

WALTER W. DAVIDSON TELEPHONE
GEORGE N. PLASTIRAS AREA D
ALLAN W. HORNE May 19 ’ 1978 3760-:7:1501
CYRIL HOLLINGSWORTH
BEN F. ARNOLD
J. MARK _SPRADLEY \AA
THOMAS S. STONE
MICHAEL O. PARKER

MARK W. GROBMYER ‘\ /
JoHN B. PEACE \/

E. M. ARNOLD
OF COUNSEL

Dr. William J. Murtagh

Keeper of the National Register
National Park Service
Department of the Interior
Washington, D.C. 20240

Dear Dr. Murtagh:

Would you please be advised that the Annunciation Greek
Orthodox Church requested that the property located at 1500
Center Street, Little Rock, Arkansas 72201 be deleted from
listing in the National Register. Would you please tell us
what procedures are necessary to so advise your group.

Singferely yours,

U

Plastiras

GNP:ena
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incentives for the rehabilitation of historic buildings.#(43)
#(44)
We appreciate your interest in historic preservation./(45)
#(46)
Sincerely,#(47)
#(48)
#(49)
#(50)

#(51)
William J. Murtagh#(52)

Keeper of the National Register#(53)
#54)
Enclosure#(55)
2(56)



Continental Building, Little Roek, Arkansas, and submitted to the National(] 7)
Ms. Sandra Tayler of the Arkansas Historic Preservation Program, Suite 500,/(] 6)
Ms. Sandra Taylor of the Arkansas Historie Preservation Program, Suite 500,%(] 6)
The documentation for this nomination was prepared by Mr. Mike Shinn and#(] 5)
Ms. Sandra Taylor of the Arkansas Historic Preservation Program, Suite 500,#(] 6)
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\ DAVIDSON, PLASTIRAS, HORNE, HOLLINGSWORTH & ARNOLD, L/TD.

ATTORNEYS AT LAwW
NATIONAL INVESTORS LIFE BUILDING
SECOND AT BROADWAY

PosT OFFICE Box 3363

Lirrrig ROEH ARKATP 2203

TELEPHONE
AREA CoDE 501
376-4731

E. M. ARNOLD
OF CoUNSEL

‘/%hé/;on. Dale Rumpers
. 8. Senator

U. 8. Senate Office Bldg.

Washington, D.C.

20515

B;af/;enator Bumpers:

In January, 1978

the Department of Interior sent a notice to

our Church, The Annunication Greek Orthodox Church, that our
church building at 1500 Center is being considered as being
placed in the National Register,

At the time a new Church board was elected and the notice
had been overlooked.

It has come to our attention through the cffice of the
Keeper of the National Register that with your assistance

the property can
Register.

be kept from being listed on the National

This matter was discussed in the last Church's general
assembly of all members and the consensus was to keep the

property as best

The reason being
west Little Rock
church structure

unencunbered as possible,
that we have purchased some property in

and plan in the future to construct a
in the Byzantine Orthodox style.

M 03 1oy
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The Hon. Dale Bumpers
June 28, 1978

Page Two

Your assistance is greatly appreciated.

Sincprely yours,
"
ge 0, Plastiras
GHP:ena

cc: Dr. William J. Murtagh ’///



HENRY M. JACKSON, WASH,, CHAIRMAN

FRANK CHURCH, IDAHO CLIFFORD P. HANSEN, WYO.
J. BENNETY JOHNSTON, LA. MARK O. HATFIELD, OREG.
¥ JAMES ABOUREZK, S. DAK. JAMES A. MC CLURE, IDAHO
FLOYD K. HASKELL, COLO. DEWEY F. BARTLETT, OKLA.
DALE BUMPERS, ARK. LOWELL P. WEICKER, JR., CONN. *
WENDELL H. FORD, KY. PETE V. DOMENICI, N. MEX. w Cn'x{eb f%ia{es ena{e
JOHN A. DURKIN, N.H. PAUL LAXALT, NEV.
HOWARD M. METZENBAUM, OHIO
SPARK M. MATSUNAGA, HAWAIL COMMITTEE ON
WENDELL R. ANDERSON, MINN. ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES

JOHN MELCHER, MONT.
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20510
GRENVILLE GARSIDE, STAFF DIRECTOR AND COUNSEL
DANIEL A. DREYFUS, DEPUTY STAFF DIRECTOR FOR LEGISLATION

D. MICHAEL HARVEY, CHIEF COUNSEL August 8 , l 9 7 8

W. O. CRAFT, JR., MINORITY COUNSEL

Ms. Kate Cole

Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service
18th and C Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20240

Dear Ms. Cole:

Enclosed is a copy of a letter that my office received
from Mr. George N. Plastiras of Little Rock, Arkansas.
I would appreciate your assistance in providing the
information Mr. Plastiras is requesting.

Any help that you can give him in this matter will
be greatly appreciated.

Sincerely,

Dale Bumpers
pBE11
cc: Mr. George N. Plastiras

Post Office Box 3363
Little Rock, Arkansas 72203
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HI-NR

Denr Senstor Bumpers:

The Governor's Mansion Historie Distriet nomination is presently being reviewed
by the prefeasional staff of the Nativasl Register,

The documentation for this nomination was prepared by Nir, Mike Shinn and
¥s. Sandra Taylor of the Arkensas Fiistorie Preservstion Program, Ssite 306,

Continental Little Roeck, Arkansas, and submitied to the Kational
Register by the Arkansss State Historie Presecvation Officer, is. Ann A
Direster of Hatural and Cultursl The Old State

Ia past communieation with ¥r, Plastiras, we have sent published information
on the National Register progrem and on the tax ineentives fer rehabilitating
historie buildings. The lsting of the Governor's Mansion Historie Distriet
Mhummmmdmmwmc&m{
to sell the present strueture in whieh it Is housed, It should be remembered

that the provisions of the Tax Reform Aet of 1978 to diseourage the demelition
of historic structures apply only lo depreciable, income-producing properties.



The enclosed material deseribes the National Register program and the tax
ineentives for the rehabilitation of historie buildings.

We appreciate your interest in historie preservation.
Sincerely,

78gd/ Jerry L. Rogers

'(for), Chris Therral Delaporte
Director

ce: Ms. Anne Bartley, Arkansas SHPO

bee: Direetor's Reading File
Associate Director, Connally
Chief, OAHP
FHR-Lumpkin
FHR-CL
CL
NR
POR -~ 5058
FHR: P. ALLEY:wee: 523-0431: 8/23/78

BASIC FILE RETAINED IN NR
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R AQKANSAS HISTORIC PRESERVATION PROGRAM
Suite 500, Continental Building - Markham and Main - Little Rock, Arkansas 72201 Phone: (501) 371-2763

May 13, 1980

Ms. Carol Shull
Acting Keeper of the National Register
Heritage Conservation &
Recreation Service
Department of Interior
440 "G" Street
Washington, D.C. 20240

Re: Governor's Mansion Historic District
Pulaski County, Little Rock
1524 Center Street

Dear Carol:

Please attach the enclosed continuation sheet to the Governor's Mansion
Historic District (listed 9-13-78), Little Rock, Arkansas. 1524 Center Street
had been determined a contributing structure to the district by our office

and had received a grant-in-aid for its restoration. However a fire on

March 30, 1980, completely destroyed the structure. The nomination for the
district needs to be amended to reflect the loss of the structure. The
completed continuation sheet can be added to the original nomination and

will adequately reflect this change.

incerely,

Donna DuVall

Historic Sites Administrator
Arkansas Historic Preservation Program

Enclosure

A Division of the Department of Natural & Cultural Heritage
An Equal Opportunity Employer
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TELEPHONE REPORT

OFFICE OF ARCHEOLOGY AND HIsTORIC PRESERVATION

ProOJECT: GOQ@NO’PLS MA SN L\u&"r. D.

LiTE
FROM: Gﬁouf. N. PH-\leEb'S , NrTORNEY DATE: QUNE
(2
:iéJfgﬂ. ADDRESS : PHONE :
STAFF MEMBER: Ppoc Ouen Drvision: NR_

REPORT :
Chueo IN REspoNSE  TO NP LeTree |

EXPLAINED “war  NR Review=d, Bot pio NUT CERITARE

AND  DeTERMINE BOUNDARIES OF NoMinaTloMS . THE

DINE AT LocaL on STamE  LEVEL,

Rend REGS. oN PecistiNG NR P ROPERTIIES.
LENT MM MR (NSO PAcKET,




ENTRTES IN THE NATIONAL REGISTER

STATE ARKANSAS

Date Entered

Name

El Dorado Junior College Building

\fggffgor's Mansion Historic District

Also Notified

'#'Honorable Dale Bumpers
i T e
Honorable Kaneaster Hodges, Jr.

Honorable Ray Thornton
Honorable James G. Tucker, Jr.

[ N Byers/bjr  9/18/78

SEP 13 1978

Location

El Dorado
Union County

Little Rock
Pulaski County

State Historic Preservation Officer
Ms. Anne Bartley

Acting Director

Arkansas Historic Preservation Program
Suite 500, Continental Building
Markham and Main Streets

Little Rock, Arkansas 72201






5. Gaines, 18th Sts., and grounds of Governor's Mansion



ARKANSAS

HISTORIC
PRESERVATION
PROGRAM
T ALY g e tRe tee e
October 11, 1993
RECEIVED
Carol D. Shull 0CT
Chief of Registration 221993
United States Department of the Interior NATIONAL
National Register of Historic Places REGISTER
National Park Service %

800 North Capitol Street, Suite 250
Washington, DC 20002

RE: Amendment to Governor’s Mansion Historic District
Little Rock, Pulaski County

Dear Carol:

We are enclosing for your review the nomination of the above referenced property. The
Arkansas Historic Preservation Program has complied with all applicable nominating
procedures and notification requirements in the nomination process.

Thank you for your consideration in this matter.

Sincerely,

Cathy Bufgrfl Slater
State Historic Preservation Officer

CBS:kg

Enclosures

1500 Tower Building @ 323 Center o Little Rock, Arkansas 72201 e Phone (501) 324-9880
Fax (501) 324-9154
A Division of the Department of Arkansas Heritage










The Department of

Arkansas
Heritage

Mike Beebe
Governor

Cathie Matthews
Director

Arkansas Arts Council

Arkansas Natural Heritage
Commission

*

Delta Cultural Center

*

Historic Arkansas Museum

Mosaic Templars
Cultural Center

0Old State House Museum

Arkansas Historic
Preservation Program

1500 Tower Building
323 Center Street
Little Rock, AR 72201
(501) 324-9880
fax: (501) 324-9184
tdd: (501) 324-9811
e-mail:
info@arkansaspreservation.org

website:

www.arkansaspreservation.org

An Equal Opportunity Employer

December 1, 2010

Ms. Carol Shull

Chief of Registration

United States Department of the Interior

National Register of Historic Places

National Park Service

8th Floor

1201 Eye Street, NW

Washington, DC 2 :
gton, DC 20005 24000620

RE: Additional Documentation, Governor's Mansion Historic

District — Little Rock, Pulaski County

Dear Carol:

We request that the above-referenced District be amended to make
the property at 1415 South Broadway a contributing resource. It was
considered a non-contributing resource in the original nomination, but
has since been restored. The Arkansas Historic Preservation Program
has complied with all applicable procedures and requirements in the
process.

If you need further information, please call Ralph S. Wilcox of my staff
at (501) 324-9787. Thank you for your consideration in this matter.

Sincerely,
Cathie Matthews
State Historic Preservation Officer

CM:rsw

Enclosure
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